
Speak out  Pre-Intermediate

Unit 1

Teacher: Zahra Khayyambashi





Verb: Verbs are words that describe an action 

or talk about something that happens.

Adjective: Adjectives are words that give more 

information about a noun or pronoun and can go 

in different positions in a sentence.

Auxiliary: a helping element, typically a verb, 

that adds meaning to the basic meaning of the 

main verb in a clause.

Adverb: An adverb is a word that modifies 

(describes) a verb (he sings loudly), an adjective 

(very tall), another adverb (ended too quickly),

Noun: A noun is a word that names something, 
such as a person, place, thing, or idea.



Article: Articles are words that define a noun as specific or unspecific.
Specific: the    The cup, the ball,……
Unspecific: a/an    an umbrella, a ball, a spoon

We don’t use Indefinite Articles with Uncountable Nouns:
Please give me a water

Please give me some water

We don’t use articles with possessive  pronouns: They both identify specificity

Why are you reading the my book?
Why are you reading the book?
Why are you reading my book?

Preposition: A preposition is a word or group of words used before a noun, pronoun, or noun 

phrase to show direction, time, place, location, spatial relationships, or to introduce an object. 

Some examples of prepositions are words like "in," "at," "on," "of," and "to."



Present Simple: The simple present is a verb 
tense with two main uses. We use the simple present 
tense when an action is happening right now, or 
when it happens regularly (or unceasingly, which is 
why it’s sometimes called present indefinite). 
Depending on the person, the simple present tense is 
formed by using the root form or by adding -s or -es 
to the end.

Present continuous: The present continuous 

verb tense indicates that an action or condition is 

happening now, frequently, and may continue 

into the future.

Present perfect: The present perfect tense refers 
to an action or state that either happened at an 
indefinite time in the past (e.g., we have talked 
before) or began in the past and continued to the 
present time (e.g., he has grown impatient over the 
last hour). This tense is formed by
have/has + the past participle.

Past simple: is used to talk about a completed 

action in a time before now. The time of the 

action can be in the recent past or the distant 

past and action duration is not important.

https://www.grammarly.com/blog/verb-tenses/




Life



Vocabulary:

Shopping: [ˈʃɑpɪŋ] (noun or verb (present participle))
The action or activity of buying goods from shops.

Holiday: [ˈhɑləˌdeɪ] (noun)
A short period of time spent away from home
Time off: [ˈtaɪm] [ˈɑf] (noun)

Time for rest and away from usual work or 

studies.

Barbecue: [bɑ́ːbəkjʉw.] (noun (verb: barbecued, barbeues))

A meal or gathering at which meat, fish, or other food is 

cooked out of doors on a rack over

an open fire.

(The barbecue itself is a rack or appliance used for

the preparation  of food at a barbecue:

"food was placed to sizzle on the barbecue“)

Musical Instrument:[ˈmjuzɪk] [ˈɪnstɹəmənt] (noun)
A tool for producing musical sounds.

Spend: [ˈspɛnd] (verb(present tense))

Give (money) to pay for goods, services, or so as to benefit 

someone or  something.

Feeling Good



Reading:



Reading:

Habit: A regular practice, especially 

one that is hard to give up.

Exercise: Activity requiring physical 

effort, in order to improve health and 

fitness.

Unexpected: Not likely to happen

Voluntary: Acting on your own free 

will / working without payment.

Curious: Eager to know or learn 

something.

Experience: Feel an emotion or 

sensation / Undergo an event

Satisfaction: The pleasure or 

pleasant feeling of seeing or 

achieving your wishes and needs  



Social: Relating to society

Focus: The centre of interest / 

concentrating interest or activity on 

something.

Opportunity: A time or set of 

circumstances that makes it possible 

to do something.



Grammar:

We Know how to make simple present (positive and negative) sentences with 

“to be” verbs:

I’mamI

He’s

She’s
It’s

Is
He

She

It

We’re

You’re
They’re

are
We

You
They

Positive

I’m notAm notI

He’s not  or  He isn’t

She’s not   or  She isn’t
It’s not or It isn’t

Is notHe

She
It

We’re not or We aren’t

You’re not or You aren’t
They’re not or They aren’t

Are notWe

You
They

Negative

Examples:

She is happy.                                          I am at school.

You are not at home.                            He is not sick.
They are eating dinner.                         We aren’t good friends.



Exercises:

1) Fill in the blanks with am, is and are:

• The weather………nice today.             

• I……not rich

• These bags……..very heavy.

• Amy………at home today.

• I……….a taxi driver.

2) Complete the sentences:

• Steve is sick. ………..in bed.

• I am not hungry but ……………..thirsty.

• These chairs are beautiful but…………….comfortable.

• The weather is nice today. ……………..warm and sunny.

3) Write true sentences, positive or negative.

• (My hands / cold)

• (It / hot today)

• (diamonds / cheap)



Grammar:

Past Tense: When we want to talk about something in the past.

Past Simple: (“to be” verbs)

I am tired                                               I was tired last night.

The weather is nice today.                 The weather was nice yesterday.

Mina isn’t in Tehran.                             Mina wasn’t in Tehran last week.

You are late.                                         You were late yesterday.

They aren’t here.                                  They weren’t here last Sunday.

We are at school.                                 We were at school.

Was
I

He

She
It

Were
We

You
They

Positive

Was not
(wasn’t)

I

He

She
It

Were not
(Weren’t)

We

You
They

Negative



Exercise:

Turn these sentences into past tense:

1) We are going home.

…………………………..

2) It is cold.

…………………………...

3) They are in the room.

…………………………….

4) She isn’t a student.

………………………………

5) I am feeling sick.
………………………………



Grammar:
Question Forms                         

What

was                               am                        Question words:     Why

To be         is                                                            When

were                             are                                                         Where

How

short Yes/No Answers                  More Detailed Answers 

Question with question wordQuestionAffirmative

Why am I late?Am I late?I am late

Where is she asleep?Is she asleep?She is asleep

When are they at school?Are they at school?They are at school

Examples:

Ali is a good student.

The train is late.

He is from England.

My parents are teachers
Mary is twelve years old



Question with question formQuestion formPast simple

How was the weather yesterday?Was the weather nice 
yesterday?

The weather was 
nice yesterday.

Why wasn’t Mina in Tehran last 
week?

Wasn’t Mina in Tehran last 
week?

Mina wasn’t in 
Tehran last week.

When were you at school?Were you at school last 
Monday?

We were at school 
last Monday.

Examples:

Taha was tired last night

Sara and Sina weren’t 

sick last week.

It wasn’t cold on Tuesday.

They were at home yesterday.



Exercise:

1) Complete the sentences with am/is/are(present) or was/were(present.

• Last year she……  22, so she ……..23 now.

• Today the weather………..cold.

• Where ………. you at 11:00  last night.

• This time last year, I ………. In Paris.

• Where ………. The children now.

2) Write questions with the words below . Use the correct verb (was/were)

• Late / you / this morning / why

………………………………………

• Last week / where / Sue and Chris 

………………………………………

• Angry / you / yesterday / why 

………………………………………

• Nice / the weather / last week.

………………………………………



Sometimes we don’t have “to be” verbs in our sentences:

• She works in a chocolate factory.

• Nima studies French.

• My parents live in New York.                                                 

• The train leaves at 12AM.

• I study my books.

• Sara and Simon live in Isfahan.

How do we change them into question forms??

We use Do/Does (auxiliary verb)

Yes / No Answer                                               More Detailed answer

• Does she works in a chocolate factory?          Where does she work?

• Does Nima studyies French?                             What does Nima study?

• Do your parents live in New York?                    Where do your parents live?

• Does the train leaves at 12AM?                        When does the train leave?

• Do you study your books ?                                Why do you study your books?

• Do Sara and Simon live in Isfahan?                  Where do Sara and Simon live?

I                                  He

Do We              Does She

You                             It
They



How do we change them into negative forms?

We use Don’t and Doesn’t

• She works in a chocolate factory.          She doesn’t work in a chocolate factory

• Nima studies French.                                Nima doesn’t study French.

• My parents live in New York.                   My parents don’t live in New York.                                         

• The train leaves at 12AM.                        The train doesn’t leave at 12AM.

• I study my books.                                      I don’t study my books.

• Sara and Simon live in Isfahan.               Sara and Simon don’t live in Isfahan.





• Turn these sentences into questions using How, What, Which, Where…..

1. The bag costs 50$                                  

………………………………………………………?

2. I have a chocolate in my hand.          

……………………………………………………….?

3. My friends live in Tehran.                       

……………………………………………………...?

4. Mina sees 3 birds.                                   

………………………………………………………?

5. Taha is going to his office.                    

………………………………………………………?

6. I go swimming every two weeks.         

……………………………………………………….?

7. It takes 2 hours to get to my class.       

……………………………………………………….?









• Where are you going on Holiday this 

year?

• How long do you plan on staying 

there?

• What do you take with you?

• What are your plans for this 

weekend?

• When do you normally wake up on 
the weekends?

Speaking:



True LoveVocabulary:







We know how to turn present “to be” Sentences into past simple forms:

I am tired                                               I was tired last night.

We are at school.                                 We were at school.
Mina isn’t in Tehran.                             Mina wasn’t in Tehran last week.

Sentences without “to be” verbs.

Regular verbs:

Present Simple:                                               Past Simple (positive):

I work in an office                                          I worked in an office.

I dance very well.                                          I danced very well.

Ali plays football.                                           Ali played football.

They need to go to the Doctor.                   They needed to go to the Doctor.

She listens to music everyday.                      She listened to music.

Present simple ed                           Past simple             

Examples:

Start        Started                                       Stop        Stopped

Enjoy      Enjoyed                                      Talk          Talked
Look       looked                                        End          Ended

Past Simple



(Yes/No Answers)

I worked in an office.                                  Did I work in an office?

I didn’t work in an office

I danced very well.                                     Did you dance very well?

I didn’t dance very well.

Ali Played Football.                                     Did Ali play basketball?

I  didn’t play football.

They needed to go to the Doctor.           Did they need to go the Doctor? 

I didn’t need to go to the Doctor.     

She listened to music everyday.                Did she listen to music?

She didn’t listen to music everyday.

Negative and question forms:

I , you

Question form          Did + He, She, it + present simple

we,they

Negative form           I, You, He, She,  +  Didn’t + present simple
It, We, They    



Exercise:

1) Complete the sentences using the past form of the verbs below:

Brush  - die   – end   – enjoy   – happen   – open   – rain   – start   – want

1)I………….my teeth three times yesterday.

2)It was  hot in the room, so I …………. the window.

3)The Movie was very long. It ………….. At 7:15 and …………. At 10.

4)When I was a child, I …………… to be a doctor.

5)The accident ……………. Last Sunday afternoon.

6)It is a nice day today but yesterday it ………… all day.

7)We …………. Our holiday last year. 

8)Anna’s grandfather …………. When he was 90 years old.



Irregular Verbs:

Some verbs do not follow the   “present simple + ed = past simple “ rule.
They are called Irregular verbs. 

PastPresent

BeganBegin

BrokeBreak

BroughtBring

BuiltBuild

BoughtBuy

CaughtCatch

CameCome

DidDo

DrankDrink

StoleSteel

PastPresent

AteEat

FellFall

FoundFind

FlewFly

ForgotForget

GotGet

GaveGive

WentGo

HadHave

ThoughtThink

PastPresent

HeardHear

KnewKnow

LeftLeave

LostLose

MadeMake

MetMeet

PaidPay

PutPut

Read*Read

WonWin

PastPresent

SaidSay

SawSee

SoldSell

SatSit

SleptSleep

SpokeSpeak

StoodStand

TookTake

ToldTell

WroteWrite



Past simple(positive): 

Ali went to school.

She broke the glass.

My parents flew from Tehran to Shiraz.

I forgot to do my homework.

Sahar ate her dinner last night.

I caught a bird yesterday.

Negative and question forms:

I , you

Question form              Did + He, She, it + present simple

we,they

Negative form                    I, You, He, She,  +  Didn’t + present simple

It, We, They

Ali went to school.                Did Ali go to school?

Ali didn’t go to school

She broke the glass.            Did she break the glass?

She didn’t break the glass. 

My Parents flew from           Did my parents fly from Tehran to Shiraz?

Tehran to Shiraz.                   My parents didn’t fly from Tehran to Shiraz.







Exercises:

1) Write sentences about the past.

1)James goes to work by car. Yesterday…………………………………….

2)Kate meets her friends every night. Kate……………………………… last week.

3)I eat an orange every day. I ………………………………last night.

4)We go to the movies every weekend. Last Sunday ……………………………

2) Turn these sentences into Negative and question forms.

1) Maryam came to my house yesterday.

………………………………………………..

………………………………………………..

2) Ali stood next to a tree.

…………………………………………………

…………………………………………………

3) We knew he went to school.

…………………………………………………..
…………………………………………………..











Conversation: A talk, especially an informal one, 

between two or more people, in which news and 

ideas are exchanged.

Interrupt: stop (someone speaking) by saying or 

doing something.

Gossip: A conversation about other people usually 

involving details that are not confirmed as being 

true.

Celebrity: A famous person, especially in 

entertainment or sport



Stressed: Experiencing mental or emotional pain.

In common: Something shared between two or 

more people.
Interested: Showing curiosity or concern about 

something or someone;

Response: A reaction to something. a verbal or 

written answer.

Skill: The ability to do something well

Rude: Offensively impolite or bad-mannered.

Topic: The main subject that is discussed. 






















